
AGENDA 
 

KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 
10:00 a.m., Friday, March 13, 2009 

 
AUDITORIUM A 

Dwight D. Eisenhower State Office Building 
700 SW Harrison, Suite 450 

Topeka, Kansas 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

B. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

C. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
1. Minutes of February 18, 2009 

D. LOTTERY GAMING FACILITY REPORTS/ITEMS 
1. Butler National Service Corp./Boot Hill Casino and Resort 

E. COMMISSION ITEMS 

1. KRGC Compliance Audit of Eureka Downs for 2008 
Commission Action:  Commission review and discussion 
Staff Presentation:  David Schultz, Chief Audit Officer 
Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval 
a. Staff Memo 
b. Eureka 2008 Financial Report Memo 
c. Accountants’ Financial Statements 

2. Apportionment of Horse Purse Money 
Commission Action:  Commission review and discussion 
Staff Presentation:  Charles LaBoy, Director of Audit and Electronic Security 
Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval as outlined in Staff Memo 
a. Staff Memo 

3. Eureka Downs 2009 Fair Race Meet Application 
Commission Action:  Commission review and discussion 
Staff Presentation:  Charles LaBoy, Director of Audit and Electronic Security 
Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval as outlined in Staff Memo 
a. Staff Memo 
b. Eureka Downs 2009 Fair Race Meet Application 

4. Final Approval And Roll Call Vote On New Regulations 
Commission Action:  Commission review and discussion 
Staff Presentation:  Patrick Martin, Assistant Attorney General 
Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval by roll call vote 

03.13.09  Agenda - Page 1 



03.13.09  Agenda - Page 2 

a. Staff Memo 
b. K.A.R. 112-12-15.  Live horse racing purse supplement fund. 
c. K.A.R. 112-13-6.  Kansas greyhound breeding development fund. 
d. Article 101 – Facility manager certification 
e. Article 102 – Gaming supplier and non-gaming supplier certification (excluding 

K.A.R. 112-102-2) 
f. Article 103 – Employee certification 
g. Article 107 – Electronic gaming machines 
h. Article 110 – Technical standards 
i. Article 111 – Involuntary exclusions 
j. Article 113 – Sanctions 
k. Article 114 – Rules of hearings 

5. Presentation Of New Regulations 
Commission Action:  Commission review and discussion 
Staff Presentation:  Patrick Martin, Assistant Attorney General 
Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval 
a. Staff Memo 
b. Article 104 – Minimum accounting and internal control standards (K.A.R.s 112-104-

34 through 41 only) 
c. Article 108 – Table games 

F. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

G. STAFF REPORTS 

1. Executive Director 

2. Assistant Attorney General 

3. Director of Administration 

a. Budget Update 
b. Commission Meeting Calendar 

H. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

1. Attorney-client communication 

I. FURTHER COMMISSION ACTION 

J. OTHER BUSINESS 

K. ADJOURNMENT 



 
KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 

 
MINUTES – February 18, 2009 

CONFERENCE CALL 
 
CALL TO ORDER: 
(A.) 

 Chair Sader called the February 18, 2009, conference call meeting to 
order at 10:00 am.  Commissioners Sader, Braun, Falstad, 
McKechnie, and Schwan were present by teleconference.  Others 
present included Executive Director Stephen Martino; Assistant 
Attorney General Patrick Martin; Director of Security Don Brownlee; 
Director of Communications/Responsible Gaming Mike Deines; 
Commission Recording Secretary Linda Pendarvis and other staff.   

   
MOTION, APPROVE 
AGENDA: 
(B.) 

 Commissioner Braun (Falstad) moved to approve the agenda as 
presented.  Motion passed unanimously. 

   
MOTION, APPROVE 
JANUARY 23, 2009, 
MEETING MINUTES: 
(C.1.) 

 Commissioner McKechnie (Schwan) moved to approve the minutes 
of the January 23, 2009, commission meeting as submitted.  Motion 
passed unanimously. 

   
MOTION, APPROVE 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
(D.) 

 Commissioner McKechnie (Falstad) moved to approve the consent 
agenda as follows: 

1. TRAK East - review and approve contracts 
a. McGladrey & Pullen, Certified Public Accountants, 

Kansas City, MO; Audit services. 
Motion passed unanimously. 

   
DISCUSSION, POST-
HEARING CHANGES TO 
NON-GAMING SUPPLIER 
REGULATION: 
(E.1.)  

 The commission heard Mr. Martin discuss proposed changes intended 
to clarify the scope of non-gaming suppliers that KRGC plans to 
background in conjunction with regulation 112-102-2, non-gaming 
supplier regulation.  Mr. Martin discussed limiting the scope of 
proposed regulation K.A.R. 112-102-2(b), which defines the scope of 
non-gaming suppliers that must be commission certified. 

   
MOTION, APPROVE 
POST-HEARING 
CHANGES TO NON-
GAMING SUPPLIER 
REGULATION: 
(E.1.) 

 Commissioner McKechnie (Braun) moved to approve the conceptual 
changes as proposed.  Motion passed unanimously. 

   
CALL FOR PUBLIC 
COMMENTS: 
(F.) 

 Chair Sader called for public comments.  There were none. 

   
STAFF REPORT, 
MARTINO: 
(G.1.) 

 The commission heard a staff report from Mr. Martino.   

C.1 (1 of 2)



February 18, 2009 
Page 2 
   
STAFF REPORT, 
ASSISTANT ATTORNEY 
GENERAL: 
(G.2.) 

 The commission heard a staff report from Mr. Martin. 

   
CALENDAR REVIEW: 
(G.3.) 

 There was no calendar review. 

   
OTHER BUSINESS: 
(H.) 

 There was no other business to come before the commission. 

   
ADJOURN: 
(I.) 

 Commissioner Braun (McKechnie) moved to adjourn at 10:23 am.  
Motion passed unanimously. 

   
   
SUBMITTED BY:   
   
   
   
William Falstad   
Secretary   
   
   
APPROVED BY:   
   
   
   
Carol H. Sader   
Chair   
 

C.1 (2 of 2)



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission 
 

STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
 

 
DATE OF MEETING: March 13, 2009 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  KRGC Compliance Audit of Eureka Downs for 2008 
 
PRESENTER:  David Schultz, Chief Audit Officer, KRGC  
 
ISSUE SUMMARY:  The Eureka Downs 2008 compliance audit was conducted on January 7, 
2009, and the financial report is included herein.  The Commission may require any fair 
association or horsemen’s nonprofit organization licensee to file a financial audit in accordance 
with Commission direction (K.A.R. 112-17-11).   
 
 
COMMISSION ACTION REQUIRED/REQUESTED:  Commission discussion, 
consideration and possible action on Eureka Down’s 2008 financial report. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  Staff recommends approval of the Eureka Down’s 2008 
financial report. 

E.1.a



700 SW Harrison, Suite 420, Topeka, Kansas 66603 
(785) 296-5800  Fax (785) 296-0900 Kansas Racing and 

Gaming Commission 

Memo 
To: Stephen L. Martino, Executive Director, KRGC 

From: Charles LaBoy, Director of Auditing and Electronic Gaming Security, KRGC 

Date: January 29, 2009 

Re: Eureka 2008 Financial Report 

 

Commission staff has completed a compliance audit of the accompanying Balance Sheet of Eureka 
Downs, a division of the Kansas Quarter Horse Racing Association, Inc. as of November 30, 2008 and 
the related Profit and Loss Statement for the year then ended. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the company’s management.  Our objective was to determine whether the underlying 
financial activity at Eureka Downs was in compliance with the Kansas Racing and Gaming 
Commission’s rules and regulations. 

Our compliance audit consisted of inquiries of Eureka Downs personnel and analytical procedures 
applied to financial data and transactions.  This compliance audit is substantially less in scope than an 
audit of financial statements in accordance with Statement on Auditing Standards, as promulgated by 
the auditing standards board of the AICPA.  During the compliance audit, nothing came to our attention 
that indicated any non-compliance with Kansas Racing and Gaming rules and regulations during the 
period under audit.  Additionally, no financial statement adjustments of a material nature were 
proposed by Commission staff to Eureka Downs. 

Included is a report titled Eureka Downs 2008 Expense Analysis.  The objective of this report was to 
determine the allocation of the operations of Eureka Downs between expenses that were allowed to be 
charged against the KRGC grant and expenditures that were not.  As detailed in the provided report, 
expenditures that were allowable to be charged against the grant exceeded the grant award amount by 
$49,386.  Additionally, this report separated those expenses that were attributable to the pari-mutuel 
activity at Eureka Downs from non pari-mutuel related expenditures.  This analysis concluded that the 
pari-mutuel activity at Eureka Downs resulted in a net loss of $16,217.  The use of the Eureka Downs 
facility during periods outside of the horse meet resulted in a net loss of $18,522.  

There was no simulcasting at Eureka Downs in 2008, so the Simulcast Report provided in previous 
years is not applicable this year. 

The final report included is titled Eureka Downs 2008 KRGC Expenses.  This report lists commission 
expenses charged to the Horse Fair Racing Benefit Fund for the regulation of the Eureka Downs 2008 
horse meet.  Expenses on this report totaled $72,864.  

 

 

 

E.1.b



E.1.c (1 of 20)



E.1.c (2 of 20)



E.1.c (3 of 20)



E.1.c (4 of 20)



E.1.c (5 of 20)



E.1.c (6 of 20)



E.1.c (7 of 20)



E.1.c (8 of 20)



E.1.c (9 of 20)



E.1.c (10 of 20)



E.1.c (11 of 20)



E.1.c (12 of 20)



E.1.c (13 of 20)



E.1.c (14 of 20)



E.1.c (15 of 20)



E.1.c (16 of 20)



E.1.c (17 of 20)



E.1.c (18 of 20)



E.1.c (19 of 20)



E.1.c (20 of 20)



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission 
 

STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
 

 
DATE OF MEETING: March 13, 2009 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Apportionment of horse purse money 
 
PRESENTER:  Charles LaBoy, Director of Audit and Electronic Security 
    Patrick Martin, Assistant Attorney General 
 
ISSUE SUMMARY:   The cessation of parimutuel racing at The Woodlands in August 
2008, prior to the regularly scheduled live horse meet, created a situation where funds totaling 
$1,179,835 that had accumulated in accordance with statue and contract could not be disbursed 
as live horse purses as would normally have happened. 

The total horse purse funds were generated as follows: 

a) $906,672 from horse simulcast at the Woodlands 
b) $69,768 from horse simulcast at Wichita Greyhound Park in 2007 

c) $158,926 carryover from the 2007 Woodlands horse meet.  Of that 
amount, 

i. $147,800.82 came from horse simulcast, and 
ii. $11,124.79 from live horse racing. 

d) $44,469 from the split of the profit from the 2007 Woodlands 
outbound horse simulcast signal.  

If not disbursed, those funds are subject to being swept by the legislature.  Two 
provisions of the parimutuel racing act direct the Commission on disbursing those funds. 

Funds generated from simulcasting 
The Commission’s role in disbursing the horse purse funds generated from horse 

simulcast ($1,124,241) and itemized in (a), (b) and (c)(i) above is governed by K.S.A 74-
8836(g)(4), which states,  

…That portion of simulcast purse money determined to be used for 
horse purses shall be apportioned by the commission to the various 
horse race meetings held in any calendar year based upon the 
number of live horse race dates comprising such horse race 
meetings in the preceding calendar year. 

The horse race meetings in the preceding calendar year, 2008, comprised of 6 race days 
at Eureka Downs and 6 race days at Anthony Downs.  In 2009, only two race meetings – Eureka 
Downs and Anthony -- are being proposed.  Therefore, under the parimutuel racing act, the 
simulcasting funds “shall” be apportioned 50% to Eureka Downs and 50% to Anthony Downs. 

E.2.a (1 of 2)



 

Non-simulcasting funds  
The horse purse funds generated from live horse racing ($11,124.79) and itemized in 

(c)(ii) above fall within K.S.A. 74-8820(a), which states that “An organization licensee shall be 
required to pay a minimum purse…The commission shall approve the amount of minimum purse 
which may be paid in stakes races during each race meeting…” 

The horse purse funds generated from the split of the outbound horse simulcast ($44,469) 
and itemized in (d) above are governed by a contract between Kansas Racing, LLC and the 
Woodlands Recognized Horse Owners Group which states, “All revenues, after expenses (as 
approved by the KRGC) are met, earned from the export of The Woodlands signal, shall be split 
on a 50% - 50% basis with the breed group from which the revenue is derived.” 

 
COMMISSION ACTION REQUIRED/REQUESTED:  Commission review, discussion and 
apportionment of horse purse money. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  Staff recommends the horse purse money from horse 
simulcast ($1,124,241.79) be apportioned 50% to Eureka Downs and 50% to Anthony Downs for 
their 2009 race meets.  Staff recommends that TRAK East be notified of the live horse purse 
funds ($11,124.79) that is available for their distribution as horse purses.  Staff recommends that 
The Woodlands Recognized Horse Owners Group be notified of the split of the outbound horse 
simulcast purse money ($44,469) that is available for their distribution as horse purses. 
 

 
 

E.2.a (2 of 2)



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission 
 

STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
 

 
DATE OF MEETING: March 13, 2009 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Application for Eureka Downs 2009 Fair race meet 
 
PRESENTER:  Charles LaBoy, Director of Audit and Electronic Security 
    KQHRA/GCFA Representative  
 
ISSUE SUMMARY:  The Kansas Quarter Horse Racing Association and Greenwood County 
Fair Association have submitted a joint application for a organizational license to conduct ten 
days of live horse racing in Eureka, KS in 2009 on the following dates: May 25, 30, June 6, 13, 
14, 20, 21, 27, 28 and July 5.  

 
COMMISSION ACTION REQUIRED/REQUESTED:  Commission review, discussion and 
direction of staff to draft an organizational license order for the Kansas Quarter Horse Racing 
Association/Greenwood County Fair Association d/b/a Eureka Downs’ 2009 horse meet for 
Commission review and final action at the next Commission meeting. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  Staff has reviewed the application and concluded that the 
application is materially compliant with K.S.A 74-8813, K.S.A. 74-8814 and article 17 of the 
KRGC rules and regulations.  Staff recommends that the noncompliant issues be reconciled with 
the Kansas Quarter Horse Racing Association and Greenwood County Fair Association and 
outlined in the organizational license order. 

 

 

E.3.a



E.3.b (1 of 29)



E.3.b (2 of 29)



E.3.b (3 of 29)



E.3.b (4 of 29)



E.3.b (5 of 29)



E.3.b (6 of 29)



E.3.b (7 of 29)



E.3.b (8 of 29)



E.3.b (9 of 29)



E.3.b (10 of 29)



E.3.b (11 of 29)



E.3.b (12 of 29)



E.3.b (13 of 29)



E.3.b (14 of 29)



E.3.b (15 of 29)



E.3.b (16 of 29)



E.3.b (17 of 29)



E.3.b (18 of 29)



E.3.b (19 of 29)



E.3.b (20 of 29)



E.3.b (21 of 29)



E.3.b (22 of 29)



E.3.b (23 of 29)



E.3.b (24 of 29)



E.3.b (25 of 29)



E.3.b (26 of 29)



E.3.b (27 of 29)



E.3.b (28 of 29)



E.3.b (29 of 29)



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission 
 

STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE OF MEETING: March 13, 2009 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Final approval of two parimutuel regulations and the second 

and third waves of gaming regulations 
 
PRESENTER: Patrick D. Martin, Assistant Attorney General 
 
ISSUE SUMMARY:  The Commission’s approval by a roll call vote is required before 
regulations that have been through the rigorous vetting process can be published in the Kansas 
Register and be made permanent.  Staff asks the Commission to formally and finally approve 
these articles and regulations: 

 
1. Two parimutuel regulations that arise under the Expanded Lottery Act: 

 
a. K.A.R. 112-12-5 Live Horse Racing Purse Supplement Fund 
b. K.A.R. 112-13-6 Kansas Greyhound Breeding Development Fund 

 
2. Eight articles of gaming regulations: 

 
a. Facility manager certification, Article 112-101-1 et seq.; 
b. Gaming supplier and non-gaming supplier certification, Article 112-102-1 et seq., 

excluding K.A.R. 112-102-2;  
c. Employee certification, Article 112-103-1 et seq.; 
d. Electronic gaming machine requirements, Article 112-107-1 et seq.; 
e. Technical standards for EGMs and Central System, Article 112-110-1 et seq.; 
f. Involuntary exclusions, Article 112-111-1 et seq.; 
g. Sanctions, Article 112-113-1 et seq.; and  
h. Rules of hearings, Article 112-114-1 et seq.   
 

The regulations should be made permanent because the Expanded Lottery Act generally 
requires the Commission to create and adopt “such rules and regulations as the commission 
deems necessary to carry out the duties and functions of the commission pursuant to Kansas 
expanded lottery act.”  K.S.A. 74-8772.  As a part of that duty, the Commission is responsible 
for adopting regulations: 

 
[p]romoting the integrity of the gaming and finances of lottery gaming 
facilities and racetrack gaming facilities and [the Commission] shall meet 
or exceed industry standards for monitoring and controlling the gaming 
and finances of lottery gaming facility operations and racetrack gaming 
facility operations and shall give the Kansas racing and gaming 
commission sufficient authority to monitor and control the gaming 
operation and to ensure its integrity and security. 

E.4.a (1 of 2)



 
Id. at (a).   

 
Of course, K.S.A. 74-8772 is not the only authority relied on for these eight articles and 

two regulations.  Instead, the Expanded Lottery Act contains many other specific commission 
duties and those specific duties are cited within each regulation.  For instance, the Commission is 
required to create a certification procedure for facility managers under K.S.A. 74-8751, and that 
statute is listed in the regulations in Article 101.  

 
All of these regulations have followed the rigorous process involved in creating 

permanent regulations.  That is, over the last year, these regulations have been reviewed by the 
KRGC (and its consultants), the Department of Administration, the Attorney General’s office, 
the Joint Committee on Administrative Rules and Regulations, and members of the regulated 
community.  Suggested revisions from each entity have been adopted into the current sets of 
regulations. 
 
COMMISSION ACTION REQUIRED/REQUESTED:  Staff asks the Commission to 
conduct a roll call vote to approve the two parimutuel regulations and eight gaming articles.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  Staff recommends approval of the regulations. 
 
 
 
 
 

E.4.a (2 of 2)



E.4.b



E.4.c (1 of 2)



E.4.c (2 of 2)



E.4.d (1 of 22)



E.4.d (2 of 22)



E.4.d (3 of 22)



E.4.d (4 of 22)



E.4.d (5 of 22)



E.4.d (6 of 22)



E.4.d (7 of 22)



E.4.d (8 of 22)



E.4.d (9 of 22)



E.4.d (10 of 22)



E.4.d (11 of 22)



E.4.d (12 of 22)



E.4.d (13 of 22)



E.4.d (14 of 22)



E.4.d (15 of 22)



E.4.d (16 of 22)



E.4.d (17 of 22)



E.4.d (18 of 22)



E.4.d (19 of 22)



E.4.d (20 of 22)



E.4.d (21 of 22)



E.4.d (22 of 22)



E.4.e (1 of 13)



E.4.e (2 of 13)



E.4.e (3 of 13)



E.4.e (4 of 13)



E.4.e (5 of 13)



E.4.e (6 of 13)



E.4.e (7 of 13)



E.4.e (8 of 13)



E.4.e (9 of 13)



E.4.e (10 of 13)



E.4.e (11 of 13)



E.4.e (12 of 13)



E.4.e (13 of 13)



E.4.f (1 of 22)



E.4.f (2 of 22)



E.4.f (3 of 22)



E.4.f (4 of 22)



E.4.f (5 of 22)



E.4.f (6 of 22)



E.4.f (7 of 22)



E.4.f (8 of 22)



E.4.f (9 of 22)



E.4.f (10 of 22)



E.4.f (11 of 22)



E.4.f (12 of 22)



E.4.f (13 of 22)



E.4.f (14 of 22)



E.4.f (15 of 22)



E.4.f (16 of 22)



E.4.f (17 of 22)



E.4.f (18 of 22)



E.4.f (19 of 22)



E.4.f (20 of 22)



E.4.f (21 of 22)



E.4.f (22 of 22)



E.4.g (1 of 85)



E.4.g (2 of 85)



E.4.g (3 of 85)



E.4.g (4 of 85)



E.4.g (5 of 85)



E.4.g (6 of 85)



E.4.g (7 of 85)



E.4.g (8 of 85)



E.4.g (9 of 85)



E.4.g (10 of 85)



E.4.g (11 of 85)



E.4.g (12 of 85)



E.4.g (13 of 85)



E.4.g (14 of 85)



E.4.g (15 of 85)



E.4.g (16 of 85)



E.4.g (17 of 85)



E.4.g (18 of 85)



E.4.g (19 of 85)



E.4.g (20 of 85)



E.4.g (21 of 85)



E.4.g (22 of 85)



E.4.g (23 of 85)



E.4.g (24 of 85)



E.4.g (25 of 85)



E.4.g (26 of 85)



E.4.g (27 of 85)



E.4.g (28 of 85)



E.4.g (29 of 85)



E.4.g (30 of 85)



E.4.g (31 of 85)



E.4.g (32 of 85)



E.4.g (33 of 85)



E.4.g (34 of 85)



E.4.g (35 of 85)



E.4.g (36 of 85)



E.4.g (37 of 85)



E.4.g (38 of 85)



E.4.g (39 of 85)



E.4.g (40 of 85)



E.4.g (41 of 85)



E.4.g (42 of 85)



E.4.g (43 of 85)



E.4.g (44 of 85)



E.4.g (45 of 85)



E.4.g (46 of 85)



E.4.g (47 of 85)



E.4.g (48 of 85)



E.4.g (49 of 85)



E.4.g (50 of 85)



E.4.g (51 of 85)



E.4.g (52 of 85)



E.4.g (53 of 85)



E.4.g (54 of 85)



E.4.g (55 of 85)



E.4.g (56 of 85)



E.4.g (57 of 85)



E.4.g (58 of 85)



E.4.g (59 of 85)



E.4.g (60 of 85)



E.4.g (61 of 85)



E.4.g (62 of 85)



E.4.g (63 of 85)



E.4.g (64 of 85)



E.4.g (65 of 85)



E.4.g (66 of 85)



E.4.g (67 of 85)



E.4.g (68 of 85)



E.4.g (69 of 85)



E.4.g (70 of 85)



E.4.g (71 of 85)



E.4.g (72 of 85)



E.4.g (73 of 85)



E.4.g (74 of 85)



E.4.g (75 of 85)



E.4.g (76 of 85)



E.4.g (77 of 85)



E.4.g (78 of 85)



E.4.g (79 of 85)



E.4.g (80 of 85)



E.4.g (81 of 85)



E.4.g (82 of 85)



E.4.g (83 of 85)



E.4.g (84 of 85)



E.4.g (85 of 85)



E.4.h (1 of 37)



E.4.h (2 of 37)



E.4.h (3 of 37)



E.4.h (4 of 37)



E.4.h (5 of 37)



E.4.h (6 of 37)



E.4.h (7 of 37)



E.4.h (8 of 37)



E.4.h (9 of 37)



E.4.h (10 of 37)



E.4.h (11 of 37)



E.4.h (12 of 37)



E.4.h (13 of 37)



E.4.h (14 of 37)



E.4.h (15 of 37)



E.4.h (16 of 37)



E.4.h (17 of 37)



E.4.h (18 of 37)



E.4.h (19 of 37)



E.4.h (20 of 37)



E.4.h (21 of 37)



E.4.h (22 of 37)



E.4.h (23 of 37)



E.4.h (24 of 37)



E.4.h (25 of 37)



E.4.h (26 of 37)



E.4.h (27 of 37)



E.4.h (28 of 37)



E.4.h (29 of 37)



E.4.h (30 of 37)



E.4.h (31 of 37)



E.4.h (32 of 37)



E.4.h (33 of 37)



E.4.h (34 of 37)



E.4.h (35 of 37)



E.4.h (36 of 37)



E.4.h (37 of 37)



E.4.i (1 of 7)



E.4.i (2 of 7)



E.4.i (3 of 7)



E.4.i (4 of 7)



E.4.i (5 of 7)



E.4.i (6 of 7)



E.4.i (7 of 7)



E.4.j (1 of 3)



E.4.j (2 of 3)



E.4.j (3 of 3)



E.4.k (1 of 15)



E.4.k (2 of 15)



E.4.k (3 of 15)



E.4.k (4 of 15)



E.4.k (5 of 15)



E.4.k (6 of 15)



E.4.k (7 of 15)



E.4.k (8 of 15)



E.4.k (9 of 15)



E.4.k (10 of 15)



E.4.k (11 of 15)



E.4.k (12 of 15)



E.4.k (13 of 15)



E.4.k (14 of 15)



E.4.k (15 of 15)



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission 
 

STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE OF MEETING: March 13, 2009 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Preliminary approval of additional gaming regulations 
 
PRESENTER: Patrick D. Martin, Assistant Attorney General 
 
ISSUE SUMMARY:  Staff asks the Commission to preliminarily approve regulations 
relating to (1) minimum internal control standards for keys and form management, K.A.R. 112-
104-34 to -41, and (2) table games, 112-108-1 et seq.   
 

The proposed regulations are necessary because the Expanded Lottery Act requires the 
Commission to create and adopt “such rules and regulations as the commission deems necessary 
to carry out the duties and functions of the commission pursuant to Kansas expanded lottery act.”  
K.S.A. 74-8772.  As a part of that duty, the Commission is responsible for adopting regulations  

 
[p]romoting the integrity of the gaming and finances of lottery gaming 
facilities and racetrack gaming facilities and [the Commission] shall meet 
or exceed industry standards for monitoring and controlling the gaming 
and finances of lottery gaming facility operations and racetrack gaming 
facility operations and shall give the Kansas racing and gaming 
commission sufficient authority to monitor and control the gaming 
operation and to ensure its integrity and security. 

 
Id. at (a).   

 
The Commission’s preliminary approval of these regulations will allow the staff to 

submit the proposed regulations to the Department of Administration’s legal department and the 
Attorney General’s office for those entities’ review and revision.  And to be clear, submission to 
the DOA and AG are just the first parts of the rigorous and lengthy process in creating 
permanent regulations.   

 
COMMISSION ACTION REQUIRED/REQUESTED:  Staff asks the Commission to 
preliminarily approve articles of regulations relating to (1) minimum internal control standards 
for keys and form management, K.A.R. 112-104-34 to -41, and (2) table games, 112-108-1 et 
seq.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  Staff recommends the preliminary approval of the proposed 
regulations. 

E.5.a



 

112-104-34.  Physical key controls; automated key controls.  (a)  “Sensitive keys” are 

those unlocking devices designated by either the Kansas lottery, a facility manager, or the 

commission as important to preserving the security of the facility manager’s business.  

Each facility manager must strictly control the storage, duplication, custody, issuance, 

and return of sensitive keys.  The sensitive key box may be stored in each facility 

manager’s accounting department.  At a minimum, the following keys are sensitive keys: 

 (1)  The EGM belly glass key; 

 (2)  the tip box key, sometimes called a “toke box” key; and 

 (3)  the accounting or audit box key.   

(b)  Sensitive keys may be further designated as “critical.”  Critical keys are those 

unlocking devices that shall be maintained in a dual locked box.  If a critical key is lost or 

becomes missing, all locks that the key fits shall be changed within 24 hours.  At a 

minimum, the following keys are critical keys:  

 (1) The EGM central processing unit key; 

 (2)  the EGM main door key; 

 (3)  the EGM drop door key; 

 (4)  the bill validator door and box release key; 

 (5)  the bill validator contents key; 

 (6)  the jackpot or EGM re-impressment kiosk keys; 

 (7)  the self-redemption or bill breaker kiosk keys; 

 (8)  the change cart key; 

 (9)  the table game drop box content key; 

 (10)  the table game drop box release key; 

E.5.b (1 of 30)



 

 (11)  the bill validator and table drop storage cart keys; 

 (11)  the table games chip bank cover key; 

 (12)  the table games chip tray key; 

 (13)  the progressive table games controller key; 

 (14)  the progressive table games high end key;   

 (15)  the reserve chip storage keys;  

(16)  the card and dice storage area keys;  

 (17)  the secondary chip storage keys;  

 (17)  the access door key to any cage, EGM bank, or redemption booth;  

 (18)  the window key to any cage, EGM bank, or redemption booth; 

 (19)  the vault keys; 

 (20)  the soft count room keys; 

 (21)  the weight scale calibration key; and 

 (22)  any keys not listed above that control access to cash or chip storage areas. 

(c)  If a facility manager chooses to use rings to maintain its keys, each key on the 

ring shall be identified on a key access list individually. 

(d)  Each facility manager’s internal control system shall include details about the 

following information: 

 (1)  The location of each sensitive and critical key box; 

 (2)  the employee or contract job titles that are authorized to access the sensitive 

or critical key boxes;  

(3)  how the keys for the sensitive or critical key boxes shall be issued and 

controlled; 

E.5.b (2 of 30)



 

 (4)  the sensitive or critical key names, location, custodian and job titles 

authorized to sign out each sensitive or critical key;  

 (5)  the location and custodian of duplicate sensitive keys; and 

 (6)  continuous surveillance coverage of each key box. 

(e)  If a facility manager chooses to use an automated key control system, the 

facility manager’s internal control system shall also include the following information: 

(1)  A description of the automated system and its configuration, including how 

access is controlled; 

(2)  the system’s ability to provide scheduled and on-demand reports for a 

complete audit trail of all access including the following: 

(A)  The identity of the key box; 

(B)  the identity of the employee; 

(C)  the identity of the keys; 

(D)  the date and time a key was removed; 

(E)  the date and time a key was returned; 

(F)  any unauthorized attempts to access the key box; and 

(G)  all entries, changes, or deletions in the system and the employee performing 

the entry, change, or deletion;  

(3)  the employee position that is in charge of any automated key control system; 

(4)  the employee positions that are authorized to enter, modify, and delete any 

keys; 

(5)  the employee positions that are authorized to access the system.  

(6)  details about the alarms being used to signal for the following events: 

E.5.b (3 of 30)



 

(A)  Overdue keys; 

(B)  open key box doors; 

(C)  unauthorized attempts to access; and  

(D)  any other unusual activities; 

(7)  any system override procedures; and 

(8)  a procedure for the  notification of a commission security agent on duty in the 

event of partial or complete system failure. 

(f)  All individuals authorized to access keys in the automated system shall have 

such authorization noted in such employee’s personnel file. 

(g)  Any changes to the authorized employees that have access to the automated 

keys shall be updated within 72 hours of the employee change.  (Authorized by and 

implementing K.S.A. 2008 Supp. 74-8772; effective P-________.) 

112-104-35.  Key control procedures.  (a)  Each facility manager’s internal controls for 

keys shall include a key box custodian.  Each sensitive or critical key box custodian shall 

be issued a sensitive or critical key access list that notes the authorized employee 

positions that may access each sensitive or critical key. 

(b)  If two keys are required to access a controlled area, then the keys shall be 

issued to different employees and each key shall be individually signed out of the key 

access list. 

(c)  Keys which require issuance under security or management escort shall be 

identified as such in the sensitive or critical key access list.  (Authorized by and 

implementing K.S.A. 2008 Supp. 74-8772; effective P-________.) 

 

E.5.b (4 of 30)



 

112-104-36.  Key access list.  (a)  Each facility manager shall maintain a current and 

accurate key access list for each sensitive or critical key.  Each facility manager shall 

provide a copy of the key access list to the commission’s director of security.  The key 

access list shall include the following details: 

 (1)  Name of the key; 

 (2)  the storage location of the key; 

 (3)  the custodian of the key; 

 (4)  the quantity of the keys;  

(5)  the employees’ titles that are authorized to remove the key; and 

(6)  any escort requirements and specific limitations to key access. 

(b)  The custodian of duplicate keys shall maintain a key access list documenting 

the following information: 

 (1)  The name of the keys; 

 (2)  the key number;  

 (3)  the employee positions that are authorized to remove the key; and 

(4)  any escort requirements for the key’s use. 

(c)  The internal control system for keys shall indicate which employees have the 

authority to make changes, deletions, or additions to the sensitive and critical key access 

lists.  (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2008 Supp. 74-8772; effective P-

________.) 

 
112-104-37.  Key log.  (a)  All sensitive or critical keys may only be issued after 

completion of a sensitive or critical key log.  The key log shall include the following 

information: 

E.5.b (5 of 30)



 

 (1)  Date issued or returned; 

 (2)  the key number;  

 (3)  the individual or automated key box issuing the key; 

 (4)  the individual receiving key; 

 (5)  the time the key was signed out or removed; 

 (6)  the time the key was signed in; 

 (7)  the individual returning the key; and 

 (8)  the individual or automated key box receiving the returned key. 

(b)  The individual who signs out a sensitive or a critical key shall maintain 

custody of the key until the key is returned to the sensitive key box.  Keys may only be 

passed to count team leads and distributed to other count team members during bill 

validator drops and EGM drops.  In the event of an emergency, illness, or injury 

rendering the individual incapable of returning the key a supervisor may return the key 

with a notation on the sensitive key log.   

(c)  Upon completion, sensitive or critical key logs shall be forwarded at intervals 

specified by the facility manager to the accounting or internal audit department where 

they shall be reviewed and retained.  If any discrepancies are found in the key logs, the 

security or internal auditing department shall begin an investigation and document the 

discrepancy. 

(d)  Each facility manager shall maintain a duplicate key inventory log  

documenting the current issuance, receipt, and inventory of all duplicate sensitive keys.  

The duplicate key inventory log shall include the following information: 

(1)  The date and time; 

E.5.b (6 of 30)



 

(2)  the key name; 

(3)  the key number; 

(4)  the number of keys in beginning inventory; 

(5)  the number of keys added or removed; 

(6)  the number of keys in ending inventory; 

(7)  the reason for adding or removing keys; and 

(8)  the signatures of the two individuals accessing the box.  (Authorized by and 

implementing K.S.A. 2008 Supp. 74-8772; effective P-________.) 

 
112-104-38.  Broken, lost, or missing keys.  (a)  The internal control system shall 

include procedures in the event a critical or sensitive key is broken as to which employee 

shall receive and replace the broken key, disposition of the broken key, and notification 

to a commission agent on duty. 

(b)  An inventory of duplicate keys shall be maintained in such quantity that there 

shall always be at least one duplicate key in inventory for each critical or sensitive key. 

(c)  The internal control system shall include procedures to be followed when a 

sensitive or critical key is lost, missing, or taken from the premises. 

(d)  The internal control system shall include procedures for investigating and 

reporting missing critical or sensitive keys.  The commission agent on duty shall be 

notified immediately of any missing or lost sensitive or critical keys.  (Authorized by and 

implementing K.S.A. 2008 Supp. 74-8772; effective P-________.) 

 

 

E.5.b (7 of 30)



 

112-104-39.  Corrections to forms.  (a)  Monetary corrections to a figure originally 

recorded on a form may only be made in ink by performing the following: 

(1)  Crossing out the error;  

(2)  entering the correct figure; and  

(3)  obtaining the initials of the employee making the change and the initials of  

the employee’s supervisor.   

(b)  Non-monetary corrections to forms shall be initialed by the employee making 

the correction.  

(c)  Any forms that are not pre-numbered shall be maintained and controlled by 

the applicable department manager.  (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2008 

Supp. 74-8772; effective P-________.) 

 
112-104-40.  Manual forms dispensers.  (a)  Each facility manager’s accounting or 

security department shall be responsible for loading and unloading any locked manual 

forms dispensers.  Forms unloaded from the dispenser shall be delivered directly to the 

accounting department. 

(b)  In the event the manual forms dispenser jams, an employee from the 

accounting department or security department shall clear the jam and relock the manual 

forms dispenser. 

(c)  The last copy is retained intact in the forms dispenser in a continuous, 

unbroken form. 

(d)  Manual forms dispensers shall be used to control the following manual forms: 

 (1)  Table fill slips; 

 (2)  table credit slips; 

E.5.b (8 of 30)



 

 (3)  EGM hand-paid jackpot payout forms; and 

(4)  EGM hopper fill slips.  (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2008 Supp. 

74-8772; effective P-________.) 

112-104-41.  Forms; description.  (a)  Each facility manager shall maintain a supply of 

all forms listed in subsection (b) and any additional forms that the manager deems 

necessary to manage the facility operations.  Each facility manager’s internal control 

submission shall include an index of all forms that the manager may use. 

(b)  The following forms shall be a part of each facility manager’s minimum 

internal controls: 

 (1)  Inventory ledgers for the following: 

 (A)  Date of receipt, count, or issuance of cards or dice; 

 (B)  quantity of cards and dice received or issued; and 

 (C)  balance of cards or dice inventory on hand; 

 (2)  A cards or dice pick-up and cancellation or destruction log, including the 

following details: 

 (A)  The date of the form’s preparation; 

 (B)  the date and time of cancellation or destruction of the cards or dice; 

 (C)  the quantity of cards and dice picked-up, canceled, or destroyed; and 

 (D)  all required signatures; 

 (3)  A card or dice storage log for the pit area, including the following details: 

(A)  The date of each entry on the log; 

(B)  the quantity and description of all cards and dice placed in the compartment; 

E.5.b (9 of 30)



 

(C) the quantity and description of all cards and dice removed from the 

compartment; 

(D)  the current number of each design and color combination of cards and dice; 

and 

(E)  every daily verification of the current inventory; 

 (4)  A cashier’s cage or vault count sheet, including the following details: 

 (A)  The date and time of the count sheet’s completion; 

 (B)  the location of the cashier’s cage; 

(C)  the amount of each type and denomination of funds; 

 (D)  the actual count total or closing inventory; 

 (E)  the accountability total; 

 (F)  the amount of overages or shortages; and 

 (G)  every signature required under by these regulations for the count sheet; 

 (5)  A cashier’s cage multiple transaction log, including the following details: 

 (A)  The location of the cashier’s cage or bank where the cash transactions 

occurred;  

 (B)  the date of the multiple transaction log;  

(C)  the full name of any patron making multiple transactions, if provided by the 

patron, or a description to help identify the patron if the patron refuses to provide a name. 

Such a description should include weight, height, hair color, and any other distinguishing 

features;  

 (D)  the total cash transaction amount; and 

 (E)  the transaction type.  The transaction types are as follows: 

E.5.b (10 of 30)



 

 (i)  Cash-outs, including but not limited to cashing personal checks and travelers 

checks; 

 (ii)  chip redemptions.  Include gaming location in comments column; 

 (iii)  deposits in for safekeeping; 

 (iv)  deposits out when withdrawing a safekeeping deposit; and 

(v)  other transactions not listed above, including cash transaction payment of 

EGM jackpots and exchanges of currency for currency; 

 (F)  the time of the transaction; 

(G)  the employee’s signature and commission license number of the employee 

logging the transaction;  

 (H)  any other information that would be useful in identifying the patron or 

explaining the transaction; 

(I)  the supervisor’s signature.  The supervisor’s signature shall acknowledge the 

following items: 

 (i)  That the supervisor has reviewed the log and to the best of the supervisor’s 

knowledge, all cash transactions of $500 or more in excess of $3,000 have been properly 

recorded; and 

 (ii)  that all currency transaction reports have been properly completed for all 

single cash transactions and series of multiple cash transactions in excess of $10,000; and 

 (J)  the page number and total pages of the log for the gaming day; 

 (6)  A chip inventory ledger, including the following details: 

 (A)  The date of receipt, issuance, and destruction; 

 (B)  the number of each denomination of chips received, issued, or destroyed; 

E.5.b (11 of 30)



 

 (C)  the dollar amount of each denomination of value chips received, issued, or 

destroyed; 

 (D)  the number and description of non-value chips received, issued, or destroyed; 

 (E)  any required signatures; and 

 (F)  the identification of primary chips held in reserve with the word “reserve;” 

 (7)  A safekeeping deposit or withdrawal form, including the following details: 

 (A)  preprinted numbering on all copies; 

 (B)  the patron making the deposit’s name and signature; 

 (C)  the date of the deposit or withdrawals; 

 (D)  the amount of deposit or withdrawals ; 

 (E)  the type of deposit or withdrawal; 

 (F)  the reason for depositor withdrawal; and 

 (G)  any required signatures; 

(8)  A duplicate key inventory log, including the following details: 

(A)  the date and time of the log’s completion; 

(B)  the key name; 

(C)  the key number; 

(D)  the number of keys in beginning inventory; 

(E)  the number of keys added or removed; 

(F)  the number of keys in ending inventory; 

(G)  the reason for adding or removing keys; and 

(H)  the required signatures of the two individuals accessing the box; 

 (9)  A tips and gratuity deposit form, including the following details: 

E.5.b (12 of 30)



 

 (A)  The date of the form’s completion; 

 (B)  the amount of chips listed by denomination; 

 (C)  the total amount of all denominations; and 

 (D)  all required signatures; 

 (10)  A temporary bank voucher, including the following details: 

 (A)  The date and time of the voucher’s completion; 

 (B)  the location of the temporary bank; 

 (C)  the amount of funds issued; 

 (D)  the signature from the main bank cashier who is issuing the funds; 

 (E)  the signature of the individual receiving funds; 

 (F)  the signature of the individual returning funds; and 

 (G)  the signature of the main bank cashier receiving returned funds; 

 (11)  A duplication of the critical program storage media log, including the 

following details:  

 (A)  The date of the form’s completion; 

 (B)  the manufacturer of the chip; 

 (C)  the program number; 

 (D)  any personnel involved; and 

 (E)  the disposition of any permanently removed CPSM; 

 (12)  An EGM drop compartment sweeps log, including the following details: 

 (A)  Each EGM number and location; 

 (B)  the date and time of the drop; 

 (C)  every signature of employees performing the sweep; and 

E.5.b (13 of 30)



 

 (D)  the supervisor overseeing the drop’s signature; 

 (13)  An EGM drop or win report, including the following details: 

 (A)  The gaming date; 

 (B)  the amount weighed by denomination and totaled; 

 (C)  the amount wrapped by denomination and totaled; 

 (D)  the dollar value difference by denomination; 

 (E)  the percentage variance difference by denomination; 

 (F)  the total jackpot payouts; 

 (G)  the total hopper fills; 

 (H)  the total foreign tokens; 

 (I)  the total drop by denomination; 

 (J)  the total drop all denominations; 

 (K)  the net win (loss) by denomination and total; and 

 (L)  all required signatures; 

 (14)  An EGM entry access log, sometimes called a “MEAL book,” including the 

following details: 

 (A)  The EGM number and location; 

 (B)  the date and time of the EGM access; 

 (C)  the reason for entry; and 

 (D)  all required signatures; 

 (15)  An EGM hand-paid jackpot form, including the following details: 

 (A)  the date and time of the form’s completion; 

 (B)  an EGM number, requiring hand-payment, location and denomination; 

E.5.b (14 of 30)



 

 (C)  the amount of jackpot; 

 (D)  the reel symbols on EGM jackpot requiring hand-payment; and 

 (E)  all required signatures; 

 (16)  An EGM hopper fill slip, including the following details: 

 (A)  The date and time; 

 (B)  an EGM number, location and denomination; 

 (C)  the amount of hopper fill (numeric only is authorized if produced by an 

automated system); and 

 (D)  the required signatures; 

 (17)  An EGM sweeps log, including the following details: 

 (A)  Each EGM number and location; 

 (B)  the date and time; 

 (C)  every signature of employees performing the sweep; and 

 (D)  the supervisor overseeing the sweep’s signature; 

 (18)  An even exchange slip, including the following details: 

 (A)  The date, time, and locations of the exchange; 

 (B)  the amounts to be exchanged by type; 

 (C)  the amounts to be changed for; 

 (D)  all required signatures; and 

 (E)  the total exchanged; 

 (19)  Each cage or bank variance slip, including the following details: 

 (A)  The date and time of the slip’s completion; 

 (B)  the location of bank; 

E.5.b (15 of 30)



 

 (C)  the amount of overage or shortage; and  

 (D)  all required signatures; 

 (20)  Ingress or egress logs for the count, surveillance rooms and cages, including 

the following details: 

 (A)  The date of ingress or egress; 

 (B)  the printed name of persons entering or leaving; 

 (C)  the time in and out; 

 (D)  the reason for entry; and 

 (E)  all required signatures; 

 (21)  A main bank or vault accountability, including the following details: 

 (A)  The date and shift; 

 (B)  the opening balance; 

 (C)  the amount of each type of accountability transactions; 

 (D)  detail of the total main bank or vault inventory including the inventory of the 

following: 

(i)  currency,  

(ii)  coin, 

(iii)  chips,  

(iv)  safekeeping deposits, and  

(v)  any unclaimed property account; 

 (E)  the total main bank or vault inventory; 

 (F)  all overages and shortages; 

 (G)  the closing balance; and 

E.5.b (16 of 30)



 

 (H)  all required signatures; 

 (22)  A master gaming report, including the following details: 

 (A)  The gaming date; 

 (B)  the game and table number; 

 (C)  the table opener; 

 (D)  the total fill slips; 

 (E)  the total credit slips; 

 (F)  the table closer; 

 (G)  the total drop per table; 

 (H)  the overall totals by game; 

 (I)  the total win or loss; and 

 (J)  all required signatures; 

 (23)  A RAM clearing slip, including the following details: 

 (A)  The date and time; 

 (B)  an EGM number, location, and tokens played; 

 (C)  the current reel positions or video display; 

 (D)  the previous two reel positions or video display; 

 (E)  the actual meter readings of the internal hard and soft meters; 

 (F)  the progressive jackpot display, if linked; 

 (G)  the reason for RAM clear; and 

 (H)  all required signatures; 

 (24)  The returned check log, including the following details: 

(A)  The name and address of the person who presented the check;  

E.5.b (17 of 30)



 

(B)  the date of the check; 

(C)  the amount of the check; 

(D)  the check number;  

(E)  the date the licensee received notification from a financial institution that the 

check was not accepted; and 

(F)  the dates and amounts of any payments received on the check after being 

returned by a financial institution;  

 (25)  A sensitive key log, including the following: 

 (A)  The date; 

 (B)  the key number;  

 (C)  the individual or automated key box issuing key; 

 (D)  the individual receiving the key; 

 (E)  the time key signed out; 

 (F)  the time key signed in; 

 (G)  the individual returning the key; and 

 (H)  the individual or automated key box receiving the returned key; 

 (26)  A signature authorization list, including the following details: 

 (A)  The hire date; 

 (B)  the employee name; 

 (C)  the department; 

 (D)  the position; 

 (E)  the license number; 

 (F)  the exemplar initials; and 

E.5.b (18 of 30)



 

 (G)  the exemplar signature with a minimum of first initial and last name; 

 (27) A surveillance incident report, including the following details: 

 (A)  The date and incident report number; 

 (B)  the time and location of the incident; 

 (C)  the names and addresses of witnesses and subjects involved in the incident, if 

known; 

 (D)  a detail narrative of incident; 

 (E)  an identification of video tape covering the incident; 

 (F)  the final disposition of the incident; and 

 (G)  all required signatures; 

 (28) A surveillance shift log, including the following details: 

 (A)  The date; 

 (B)  the time of and duration, name, and location of important or unusual 

observations; 

 (C)  a listing of any surveillance issues, including the following: 

(i)  equipment malfunctions related to other logged events or activities,  

(ii)  completed tapes,  

(iii)  still photograph requests, and 

 (D)  required signatures; 

 (29) A surveillance tape release log, including the following details: 

 (A)  The tape number; 

 (B)  the date and time of release; 

 (C)  the printed name, department, or agency; 

E.5.b (19 of 30)



 

 (D)  a notation indicating whether the tape is a duplicate or original; 

 (E)  an authorization notation; 

 (F)  an issued by and to notation; and 

 (G)  all required signatures; 

 (30) A surveillance tape retention log, including the following details: 

 (A)  The date and time; 

 (B)  the tape number; 

 (C)  a description, activity recorded, recording mode; and 

 (D)  all required signatures; 

 (31) A table credit slip, including the following details: 

 (A)  The date, pit, game or table number, and time; 

 (B)  the amount of each denomination of chips to be credited; 

 (C)  the total amount of all denomination to be credited; and 

 (D)  all required signatures; 

 (32)  A table fill slip, including the following details: 

 (A)  The date, pit, game or table number, and time; 

 (B)  the amount of each denomination of chips to be distributed; 

 (C)  the total amount of all denomination to be distributed; and 

 (D)  all required signatures; 

 (33)  A table inventory slip, including the following details: 

 (A)  The date and shift; 

 (C)  the game and table number; 

 (D)  the total value of each denomination of chips remaining at the table; 

E.5.b (20 of 30)



 

 (E)  the total value of all denominations; and 

 (F)  all required signatures; 

 (35) A table soft count slip or currency counter machine tape, including the 

following details: 

 (A)  The date; 

 (B)  the table game and number; 

 (C)  the box contents by denomination; 

 (D)  the total of all denominations; and 

 (E)  all required signatures; 

 (35)  A weigh scale calibration module access log, including the following details: 

 (A)  The date and time; 

 (B)  the reason for access; and 

 (C)  all required signatures; 

 (36) A weigh scale tape, including the following details: 

 (A)  The date and time; 

 (B)  an EGM number and denomination; 

 (C)  the weigh value per bucket; 

 (D)  the total by denomination; 

 (E)  the total of all denominations; and 

 (F)  all required signatures; 

 (37)  A wide area progressive secondary jackpot slip, including the following 

details: 

 (A)  The date and time; 

E.5.b (21 of 30)



 

 (B)  an EGM number, location, and denomination; 

 (C)  the amount of jackpot in alpha and numeric description; 

 (D)  the reel symbols and number of tokens played; 

 (E)  all required signatures; and 

 (F)  the game type; 

 (38)  A security incident report, including the following details: 

 (A)  The incident report number; 

 (B)  the date and time; 

 (C)  the location of the incident; 

 (D)  the date and time of the incident; 

 (E)  the type of incident; 

(F)  the names and addresses of witnesses and subjects involved in the incident, if 

known;     

 (G)  a detailed narrative of the incident; 

 (H)  the identification of video tape covering the incident, if applicable; and  

 (I)  all required signatures; 

(39)  A security incident log, including the following details: 

(A)  The date of the daily log; 

(B)  time of the incident; 

(C)  the incident report number; 

(D)  the name of reporting security department employee and commission license 

number; and  

(E)  the summary of the incident; 

E.5.b (22 of 30)



 

(40)  A visitor or vendor log, including the following details: 

  (A)  The date; 

  (B)  the printed name; 

  (C)  the company; 

  (D)  the time in and time out; 

  (E)  the type of badge and the badge number; 

  (F)  the reason for entry; and 

  (G)  all required signatures. 

(41) A key access list, including the following details: 

(A)  The name of the key; 

(B)  the location of the key; 

(C)  the custodian of the key; 

(D)  the quantity of the keys; and 

(E)  the job titles authorized to sign out the key and, if applicable, escort 

requirements and specific limitations; 

(42) A table games variance slip, including the following details: 

(A)  The gaming date; 

(B)  the game or table number; 

(C)  the shift; 

(D)  a description of the discrepancy found; and 

(E)  all required signatures; 

(43)  An inventory log of pre-numbered forms, including the following details: 

(A)  The name of the pre-numbered form; 

E.5.b (23 of 30)



 

(B)  the date received or issued; 

(C)  the quantity received or issued; 

(D)  the number sequence of forms received or issued; 

(E)  the name of the department that forms were issued to; and 

(F)  all required signatures and commission license numbers; 

(44)  A gift log, including the following details: 

(A)  The name of the gift recipient; 

(B)  the gift donor; 

(C)  a description and value of the gift; and 

(D)  the date the gift was received; 

(45)  A safekeeping log, including the following details: 

(A)  The date of deposit or withdrawal; 

(B)  the name of patron; 

(C)  the dollar amount of deposit or withdrawal; 

(D)  the type of deposit or withdrawal; and 

(E)  the total balance of all deposits;  

(46)  A card or dice discrepancy report, including the following details: 

(A)  The date and time; 

(B)  the location; 

(C)  a description of the discrepancy found; and 

(D)  all required signatures; 

(47)  A remote access log, including the following details: 

(A)  The access start date and time; 

E.5.b (24 of 30)



 

(B)  the access end date and time; 

(C)  the reason; and 

(D)  the person making access;  

(48)  A personnel access list, including the following details: 

(A)  The mployee name; 

(B)  the license number; and 

(C)  all authorized functions the employee may perform or equivalent means of 

identifying same; 

 (49)  A redemption log, including the following details: 

 (A)  The date; 

 (B)  the dollar value of each item received by mail; 

 (C)  the check number; 

 (D)  the patron’s name and address; and 

 (E)  the signature of the employee performing the transaction; 

 (50)  A currency cassette log, including the following details: 

(A)  The date;  

(B)  the time; 

(C)  the tamper resistant seal number;  

(D)  the unique cassette number; 

(E)  the amount of cash in the cassette; 

(F)  the denomination of currency in the cassette; and 

(G)  the signature of the main bank cashier who prepared the cassette; and 

  (51)  A table games jackpot slip, including the following details: 

E.5.b (25 of 30)



 

 (A)  The date; 

 (B)  the time; 

 (C)  the amount of winnings in alpha and numeric description; 

 (D)  the table game number; 

 (E)  the type of jackpot; 

 (F)  the player’s name; 

 (G)  the signature of cashier; 

 (H)  the signature of the dealer; 

 (I)  the signature of the table games supervisor; and 

 (J)  the signature of the security officer escorting the funds; 

(52)  A meter reading comparison report, including the following details: 

 (A)  The date; 

 (B)  the asset number; 

 (C)  the beginning and ending credits played; 

 (D)  the beginning and ending credits paid; 

(E)  the beginning and ending amount-to-drop, if applicable; 

 (F)  the beginning and ending jackpots paid; 

 (G)  the difference between the beginning and ending amount for all meters; 

 (H)  the variance between the meters, if any; and  

(I)  an accounting signature.  (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 2008 

Supp. 74-8772; effective P-________.) 

 

 

E.5.b (26 of 30)



 

112-104-34.  Physical key controls; automated key controls.  (a)  “Sensitive keys” are 

those unlocking devices designated by either the Kansas lottery, a facility manager, or the 

commission as important to preserving the security of the facility manager’s business.  

Each facility manager must strictly control the storage, duplication, custody, issuance, 

and return of sensitive keys.  The sensitive key box may be stored in each facility 

manager’s accounting department.  At a minimum, the following keys are sensitive keys: 

 (1)  The EGM belly glass key; 

 (2)  the tip box key, sometimes called a “toke box” key; and 

 (3)  the accounting or audit box key.   

(b)  Sensitive keys may be further designated as “critical.”  Critical keys are those 

unlocking devices that shall be maintained in a dual locked box.  If a critical key is lost or 

becomes missing, all locks that the key fits shall be changed within 24 hours.  At a 

minimum, the following keys are critical keys:  

 (1) The EGM central processing unit key; 

 (2)  the EGM main door key; 

 (3)  the EGM drop door key; 

 (4)  the bill validator door and box release key; 

 (5)  the bill validator contents key; 

 (6)  the jackpot or EGM re-impressment kiosk keys; 

 (7)  the self-redemption or bill breaker kiosk keys; 

 (8)  the change cart key; 

 (9)  the table game drop box content key; 

 (10)  the table game drop box release key; 

E.5.b (27 of 30)



 

 (11)  the bill validator and table drop storage cart keys; 

 (11)  the table games chip bank cover key; 

 (12)  the table games chip tray key; 

 (13)  the progressive table games controller key; 

 (14)  the progressive table games high end key;   

 (15)  the reserve chip storage keys;  

(16)  the card and dice storage area keys;  

 (17)  the secondary chip storage keys;  

 (17)  the access door key to any cage, EGM bank, or redemption booth;  

 (18)  the window key to any cage, EGM bank, or redemption booth; 

 (19)  the vault keys; 

 (20)  the soft count room keys; 

 (21)  the weight scale calibration key; and 

 (22)  any keys not listed above that control access to cash or chip storage areas. 

(c)  If a facility manager chooses to use rings to maintain its keys, each key on the 

ring shall be identified on a key access list individually. 

(d)  Each facility manager’s internal control system shall include details about the 

following information: 

 (1)  The location of each sensitive and critical key box; 

 (2)  the employee or contract job titles that are authorized to access the sensitive 

or critical key boxes;  

(3)  how the keys for the sensitive or critical key boxes shall be issued and 

controlled; 

E.5.b (28 of 30)



 

 (4)  the sensitive or critical key names, location, custodian and job titles 

authorized to sign out each sensitive or critical key;  

 (5)  the location and custodian of duplicate sensitive keys; and 

 (6)  continuous surveillance coverage of each key box. 

(e)  If a facility manager chooses to use an automated key control system, the 

facility manager’s internal control system shall also include the following information: 

(1)  A description of the automated system and its configuration, including how 

access is controlled; 

(2)  the system’s ability to provide scheduled and on-demand reports for a 

complete audit trail of all access including the following: 

(A)  The identity of the key box; 

(B)  the identity of the employee; 

(C)  the identity of the keys; 

(D)  the date and time a key was removed; 

(E)  the date and time a key was returned; 

(F)  any unauthorized attempts to access the key box; and 

(G)  all entries, changes, or deletions in the system and the employee performing 

the entry, change, or deletion;  

(3)  the employee position that is in charge of any automated key control system; 

(4)  the employee positions that are authorized to enter, modify, and delete any 

keys; 

(5)  the employee positions that are authorized to access the system.  

(6)  details about the alarms being used to signal for the following events: 

E.5.b (29 of 30)



 

(A)  Overdue keys; 

(B)  open key box doors; 

(C)  unauthorized attempts to access; and  

(D)  any other unusual activities; 

(7)  any system override procedures; and 

(8)  a procedure for the  notification of a commission security agent on duty in the 

event of partial or complete system failure. 

(f)  All individuals authorized to access keys in the automated system shall have 

such authorization noted in such employee’s personnel file. 

(g)  Any changes to the authorized employees that have access to the automated 

keys shall be updated within 72 hours of the employee change.  (Authorized by and 

implementing K.S.A. 2008 Supp. 74-8772; effective P-________.) 

 

 
 

E.5.b (30 of 30)



E.5.c (1 of 119)



E.5.c (2 of 119)



E.5.c (3 of 119)



E.5.c (4 of 119)



E.5.c (5 of 119)



E.5.c (6 of 119)



E.5.c (7 of 119)



E.5.c (8 of 119)



E.5.c (9 of 119)



E.5.c (10 of 119)



E.5.c (11 of 119)



E.5.c (12 of 119)



E.5.c (13 of 119)



E.5.c (14 of 119)



E.5.c (15 of 119)



E.5.c (16 of 119)



E.5.c (17 of 119)



E.5.c (18 of 119)



E.5.c (19 of 119)



E.5.c (20 of 119)



E.5.c (21 of 119)



E.5.c (22 of 119)



E.5.c (23 of 119)



E.5.c (24 of 119)



E.5.c (25 of 119)



E.5.c (26 of 119)



E.5.c (27 of 119)



E.5.c (28 of 119)



E.5.c (29 of 119)



E.5.c (30 of 119)



E.5.c (31 of 119)



E.5.c (32 of 119)



E.5.c (33 of 119)



E.5.c (34 of 119)



E.5.c (35 of 119)



E.5.c (36 of 119)



E.5.c (37 of 119)



E.5.c (38 of 119)



E.5.c (39 of 119)



E.5.c (40 of 119)



E.5.c (41 of 119)



E.5.c (42 of 119)



E.5.c (43 of 119)



E.5.c (44 of 119)



E.5.c (45 of 119)



E.5.c (46 of 119)



E.5.c (47 of 119)



E.5.c (48 of 119)



E.5.c (49 of 119)



E.5.c (50 of 119)



E.5.c (51 of 119)



E.5.c (52 of 119)



E.5.c (53 of 119)



E.5.c (54 of 119)



E.5.c (55 of 119)



E.5.c (56 of 119)



E.5.c (57 of 119)



E.5.c (58 of 119)



E.5.c (59 of 119)



E.5.c (60 of 119)



E.5.c (61 of 119)



E.5.c (62 of 119)



E.5.c (63 of 119)



E.5.c (64 of 119)



E.5.c (65 of 119)



E.5.c (66 of 119)



E.5.c (67 of 119)



E.5.c (68 of 119)



E.5.c (69 of 119)



E.5.c (70 of 119)



E.5.c (71 of 119)



E.5.c (72 of 119)



E.5.c (73 of 119)



E.5.c (74 of 119)



E.5.c (75 of 119)



E.5.c (76 of 119)



E.5.c (77 of 119)



E.5.c (78 of 119)



E.5.c (79 of 119)



E.5.c (80 of 119)



E.5.c (81 of 119)



E.5.c (82 of 119)



E.5.c (83 of 119)



E.5.c (84 of 119)



E.5.c (85 of 119)



E.5.c (86 of 119)



E.5.c (87 of 119)



E.5.c (88 of 119)



E.5.c (89 of 119)



E.5.c (90 of 119)



E.5.c (91 of 119)



E.5.c (92 of 119)



E.5.c (93 of 119)



E.5.c (94 of 119)



E.5.c (95 of 119)



E.5.c (96 of 119)



E.5.c (97 of 119)



E.5.c (98 of 119)



E.5.c (99 of 119)



E.5.c (100 of 119)



E.5.c (101 of 119)



E.5.c (102 of 119)



E.5.c (103 of 119)



E.5.c (104 of 119)



E.5.c (105 of 119)



E.5.c (106 of 119)



E.5.c (107 of 119)



E.5.c (108 of 119)



E.5.c (109 of 119)



E.5.c (110 of 119)



E.5.c (111 of 119)



E.5.c (112 of 119)



E.5.c (113 of 119)



E.5.c (114 of 119)



E.5.c (115 of 119)



E.5.c (116 of 119)



E.5.c (117 of 119)



E.5.c (118 of 119)



E.5.c (119 of 119)



MARCH
13 Commission Meeting

APRIL
16 Commission Meeting

MAY
15 Commission Meeting

JUNE
12 Commission Meeting

JULY
17 Commission Meeting (tentative)

AUGUST
14 Commission Meeting (tentative)

SEPTEMBER
11 Commission Meeting (tentative)

OCTOBER
16 Commission Meeting (tentative)

NOVEMBER
13 Commission Meeting (tentative)

DECEMBER
11 Commission Meeting (tentative)

March 2009 - February  2010

Commission Planner

Apr 2009
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4
5 6 7 8 9 10 11
12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30

May 2009
S M T W T F S

1 2
3 4 5 6 7 8 9
10 11 12 13 14 15 16
17 18 19 20 21 22 23
24 25 26 27 28 29 30
31

Jun 2009
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6
7 8 9 10 11 12 13
14 15 16 17 18 19 20
21 22 23 24 25 26 27
28 29 30

Jul 2009
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4
5 6 7 8 9 10 11
12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30 31

Aug 2009
S M T W T F S

1
2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15
16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30 31

Sep 2009
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5
6 7 8 9 10 11 12
13 14 15 16 17 18 19
20 21 22 23 24 25 26
27 28 29 30

Oct 2009
S M T W T F S

1 2 3
4 5 6 7 8 9 10
11 12 13 14 15 16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28 29 30 31

Nov 2009
S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5 6 7
8 9 10 11 12 13 14
15 16 17 18 19 20 21
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
29 30

Dec 2009
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5
6 7 8 9 10 11 12
13 14 15 16 17 18 19
20 21 22 23 24 25 26
27 28 29 30 31

Jan 2010
S M T W T F S

1 2
3 4 5 6 7 8 9
10 11 12 13 14 15 16
17 18 19 20 21 22 23
24 25 26 27 28 29 30
31

Feb 2010
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6
7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14 15 16 17 18 19 20
21 22 23 24 25 26 27
28

Mar 2009
S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5 6 7
8 9 10 11 12 13 14
15 16 17 18 19 20 21
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
29 30 31

G.3.b


	2009-03-13 Agenda - updated.pdf
	page 2
	C. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	C.1  2009-02-18 conference call minutes

	E. COMMISSION ITEMS
	E.1  Eureka Downs 2008 Audit
	E.1.a  Staff Memo
	E.1.b  Engagement Report2008
	E.1.c  Eureka 2008 Audit Report

	E.2  Horse Purse Money Apportionment
	E.2.a  Staff Memo

	E.3  Eureka Downs 2009 Application 
	E.3.a  Staff Memo
	E.3.b  Eureka Downs App 09

	E.4  Final Approval of New Regs
	E.4.a  Staff Memo
	E.4.b  KAR 112-12-15
	E.4.c  KAR 112-13-6
	E.4.d  Article 101
	E.4.e  Article 102
	E.4.f  Article 103
	E.4.g  Article 107
	E.4.h  Article 110
	E.4.i  Article 111
	E.4.j  Article 113
	E.4.k  Article 114

	E.5  New Regulations
	E.5.a  Staff Memo
	E.5.b  112-104 Draft 
	E.5.c  Article 108Draft


	G.  STAFF REPORTS
	G.3  Director of Administration
	G.3.b  Commission Calendar






